

File No. 250888

Committee Item No. 4

Board Item No. 8

COMMITTEE/BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA PACKET CONTENTS LIST

Committee: Land Use and Transportation

Date: November 3, 2025

Board of Supervisors Meeting:

Date: November 18, 2025

Cmte Board

- | | | |
|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--|
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Motion |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Resolution |
| <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | Ordinance |
| <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | Legislative Digest |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Budget and Legislative Analyst Report |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Youth Commission Report |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Introduction Form |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Department/Agency Cover Letter and/or Report |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | MOU |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Grant Information Form |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Grant Budget |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Subcontract Budget |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Contract / DRAFT Mills Act Agreement |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Form 126 – Ethics Commission |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Award Letter |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Application |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | Public Correspondence |

OTHER

- | | | |
|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|---|
| <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | <u>PC Transmittal – October 28, 2025</u> |
| <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | <u>CEQA Determination – October 3, 2025</u> |
| <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> | <u>Mayor's Intro Memo – September 2, 2025</u> |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | _____ |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | _____ |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | _____ |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | _____ |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | _____ |
| <input type="checkbox"/> | <input type="checkbox"/> | _____ |

Prepared by: John Carroll

Date: October 31, 2025

Prepared by: John Carroll

Date: November 4, 2025

Prepared by: _____

Date: _____

1 [Planning Code - Planning Fees]

2

3 **Ordinance amending the Planning Code to require certain Planning Department fees to**
 4 **be paid to the Department at the time the Development Application is submitted,**
 5 **modify the environmental review fees for large projects, and remove the separate fee**
 6 **schedule for “Class 32” categorical exemptions under the California Environmental**
 7 **Quality Act; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California**
 8 **Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and**
 9 **the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and making findings of**
 10 **public necessity, convenience, and welfare pursuant to Planning Code, Section 302.**

11 NOTE: **Unchanged Code text and uncodified text** are in plain Arial font.
 12 **Additions to Codes** are in *single-underline italics Times New Roman font*.
 13 **Deletions to Codes** are in *strikethrough italics Times New Roman font*.
 14 **Board amendment additions** are in double-underlined Arial font.
 15 **Board amendment deletions** are in ~~strikethrough Arial font~~.
 16 **Asterisks (* * * *)** indicate the omission of unchanged Code
 17 subsections or parts of tables.

15

16 Be it ordained by the People of the City and County of San Francisco:

17

18 Section 1. Land Use and Environmental Findings.

19 (a) The Planning Department has determined that the actions contemplated in this
 20 ordinance comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resources
 21 Code Sections 21000 et seq.). Said determination is on file with the Clerk of the Board of
 22 Supervisors in File No. 250888 and is incorporated herein by reference. The Board affirms
 23 this determination.

24 (b) On October 23, the Planning Commission, in Resolution No. 21855, adopted
 25 findings that the actions contemplated in this ordinance are consistent, on balance, with the

1 City's General Plan and eight priority policies of Planning Code Section 101.1. The Board
2 adopts these findings as its own. A copy of said Resolution is on file with the Clerk of the
3 Board of Supervisors in File No. 250888, and is incorporated herein by reference.

4 (c) Pursuant to Planning Code Section 302, this Board finds that these Planning Code
5 amendments will serve the public necessity, convenience, and welfare for the reasons set
6 forth in Planning Commission Resolution No. 21855, and the Board adopts such reasons as
7 its own. A copy of said resolution is on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File
8 No. 250888 and is incorporated herein by reference.

9
10 Section 2. Background and General Findings.

11 (a) In 2016, the Board adopted Ordinance No. 149-16 to establish initial Planning
12 Department fees and to authorize the Controller to adjust the fees each year to reflect
13 changes in the two-year average Consumer Price Index (CPI) change for the San
14 Francisco/San Jose Primary Metropolitan Area. The Planning Department publishes the Fee
15 Schedule showing the current fee amounts, inclusive of annual adjustments, in an Appendix
16 to the Planning Code, and posts it on the Planning Department's website. In addition, the Fee
17 Schedule is available at the main office of the Department.

18 (b) Unless otherwise noted, the existing fee amounts shown in Section 5 of this
19 ordinance are those originally enacted in 2016 in Ordinance No. 149-16, and they have not
20 been changed to reflect annual adjustments based on the Consumer Price Index.

21 (c) Since 2016, the Board has adopted several ordinances amending Ordinance No,
22 146-16, as follows:

23 (1) Ordinance No. 221-18, which made amendments clarifying the fees
24 applicable to projects with no or very low construction costs, and changed the fees for
25 transportation analysis.

1 (2) Ordinance No. 189-23, which waived certain fees during Small Business
2 Month.

3 (3) Ordinance No. 127-24, which made amendments to the Board of Appeals
4 fee surcharge.

5 (d) As of September 2, 2025, there is also a pending ordinance, in Board File No.
6 250440, that would amend the surcharge for appeals to the Board of Supervisors.

7 (e) Since 2017, the Legislature has passed several “streamlining” bills that establish a
8 ministerial approval pathway for development approvals, which has increased the number of
9 projects that do not require discretionary entitlements from the Planning Commission. Such
10 projects still require Planning Department staff review to ensure compliance with state and
11 local objective standards. As the Planning Code now stands, fees for this review are not
12 assessed until a project has submitted a building permit. As a result, the Planning Department
13 does not reliably receive compensation for staff review in a timely manner, and in cases of
14 projects that stall or never seek a building permit, does not receive any compensation.

15 (f) This ordinance ensures that the Planning Department is compensated for its review
16 of building permits by aligning the timing of payment for such review with the time that
17 Planning Department staff review the development application. The ordinance does not
18 modify or change the amount of the fees paid for this review.

19 (g) This ordinance also reduces government constraints on development and
20 enhances government efficiency by standardizing the reduction of certain fees for large
21 projects subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Updating these fees will
22 create a clearer pathway for projects to proceed to development while allowing the Planning
23 Department to operate in a fiscally sustainable manner in reviewing development applications.
24 The reductions in CEQA fees would apply to a project that submits a development application
25 on or after September 2, 2025, the date of introduction of this ordinance at the Board of

1 Supervisors.

2 (h) Based on prior amendments to Ordinance No. 149-16, this ordinance makes
3 conforming amendments clarifying the date certain fees were established.

4 (i) Fast, predictable, and transparent permitting processes and reduced fee burdens
5 will help to create new jobs, businesses, and homes in San Francisco, as well as facilitate the
6 City’s economic recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. Commonly referred to as
7 “PermitSF,” the City’s effort to reform permitting consists of improving the customer
8 experience by streamlining approval processes; promoting governmental accountability to
9 provide certainty about the delivery of government services; and centralizing technology to
10 create a single point of permitting access.

11
12 Section 3. Articles 1 and 3.5 of the Planning Code are hereby amended by revising
13 Sections 102 and 350, to read as follows:

14
15 **SEC. 102. DEFINITIONS.**

16 * * * *

17 **“Development Application.”** ~~shall mean a~~Any application for a land use authorization or
18 entitlement, including but not limited to a Project Authorization, building permit, site permit,
19 Conditional Use, Variance, Large Project Authorization, HOME-SF Project Authorization,
20 authorization pursuant to Article 3 of the Planning Code Sections 305.1, 309, 309.1, or 322, or for
21 any other authorization of a development project required to be approved by the Planning
22 Department, Zoning Administrator, Historic Preservation Commission, or Planning Commission,
23 that has been deemed complete by the Planning Department and includes any information necessary to
24 conduct environmental review, determine Planning Code compliance, and conformity with the General
25 Plan.

1 * * * *

2
3 **SEC. 350. FEES.**

4 * * * *

5 (e) **Estimated Construction Costs.** Estimated construction costs are as defined by
6 the San Francisco Building Code. Certain of the fees specified in Section 4 of Ordinance No.
7 149-16 in Board of Supervisors File No. 160632 place a limit on the fee based on its not
8 exceeding a specified percentage of construction cost. This limit shall apply to certain fees, as
9 set forth in Ordinance No. 149-16, ~~and~~ Ordinance No. 221-18, amending Ordinance No. 149-
10 16, in Board of Supervisors File No. 180584, and Ordinance No. _____, further amending Ordinance
11 No. 149-16, in Board of Supervisors File No. 250888. Unless otherwise noted, the fee amounts shown
12 in Ordinance No. 149-16 are the amounts originally established in 2016. The Planning Department
13 maintains the Department's Fee Schedule, which includes any annual adjustments, and is available at
14 the Department and on the Department's website.

15 * * * *

16 (g) **Time and Materials.** The Planning Department shall charge the applicant for any
17 time and materials costs incurred in excess of the initial fee charged if required to recover the
18 Department's costs for providing services.

19 (1) The Department shall charge time and materials to recover the cost of
20 correcting code violations and violations of Planning Commission and Department conditions
21 of approval of use if such costs are not covered by the monitoring fee for conditions of
22 approval specified in the Planning Department Fee Schedule.

23 (2) Where a different limitation on time and materials charges is set forth
24 elsewhere in this Article 3.5, that limitation shall prevail.

1 (3) The Planning Department may also charge the applicant for any time and
2 materials costs incurred by ~~another department~~s or agencies of the City and County of San
3 Francisco, or may authorize such other departments or agencies ~~of the City and County~~ to
4 charge directly for any time and materials costs incurred by the respective department or
5 agency to recover the cost of correcting code violations and violations of Planning
6 Commission and Department conditions of approval.

7 * * * *

8 (j) **Deferred or Reduced Fee; Fee Waivers.**

9 * * * *

10 (3) Certain of the fees charged in accordance with subsections (b) and (c) are
11 subject in some circumstances to waiver, as stated in Section 4 of Ordinance No. 149-16-~~in~~
12 ~~Board of Supervisors File No. 160632~~, or as stated below. Description of the waivers below does
13 not affect the other waiver provisions in Section 4 of Ordinance No. 149-16.-

14 Small Business Month Fee Waivers: No Planning Department fees shall apply to
15 a Small Business that applies for a permit for awning replacement or signs on awnings during
16 the month of May. ~~No Planning Department fees shall apply to a Small Business that applies for a~~
17 ~~permit for a new awning installation or a Business Sign pursuant to Section 604 during the months of~~
18 ~~May 2023 and May 2024.~~ For purposes of this subsection (j)(3), a Small Business shall be a
19 business with a total workforce of 100 or fewer full-time employees. To the extent this
20 provision for Small Business Month Fee Waivers differs from the description in subsection (f)
21 on page 43 of Ordinance No. 149-16, this provision governs.

22 * * * *

23
24 Section 4. Chapter 31, Article IV of the Administrative Code is amended by revising
25 Sections 31.22, and 31.23.1, to read as follows:

1 **SEC. 31.22. FEES.**

2 * * * *

3 (b) ***Initial Base Fees.*** The *initial base* fees to be charged and collected by the
4 Department for the activities performed by the Department under Chapter 31 of this Code are
5 stated in Section 4 of Ordinance No. 149-16, ~~available in Board of Supervisors File No.~~
6 ~~160632, as amended by Ordinance No.~~, in Board of Supervisors File No. 250888, and on the
7 website of the Board of Supervisors. The *initial base* fees stated in Section 4 of that ordinance
8 are the fees in effect as of the date of introduction of ~~the~~ Ordinance No. 149-16.

9 (c) **Annual Adjustment of *Initial Base Fees.*** Consistent with preexisting law,
10 beginning with the setting of fees for fiscal year 2016-2017, the Controller will annually adjust
11 the base fee amounts referenced in subsection (b) and *originally* stated in Section 4 of
12 Ordinance No. 149-16 ~~in Board of Supervisors File No. 160632~~, without further action by the
13 Board of Supervisors, to reflect changes in the two-year average Consumer Price Index (CPI)
14 change for the San Francisco/San Jose Primary Metropolitan Area (PMSA). This process will
15 occur as follows.

16 No later than April 15 of each year, the Director shall submit the Department's current
17 Fee Schedule to the Controller, who shall apply the CPI adjustment to produce a new Fee
18 Schedule for the fiscal year beginning July 1. No later than May 15 of each year, the
19 Controller shall ~~file the~~ report with the Board of Supervisors reporting the new Fee Schedule
20 and certifying that: (1) the fees produce sufficient revenue to support the costs of providing the
21 services for which the fee is charged and (2) the fees do not produce revenue that exceeds
22 the costs of providing the services for which each permit fee is charged.

23 * * * *

24 (f) **Time for Payment.** The fee specified for an initial study of a project excluding use
25 of special expertise or technical assistance shall be paid to the Planning Department at the

1 time of the filing of the ~~environmental evaluation~~ Development Application. Where an
2 environmental impact report is determined to be required, the fee specified for preparation of
3 an ~~E~~environmental ~~I~~impact ~~R~~report excluding use of special expertise or technical assistance
4 shall be paid at the time the Notice of Preparation is prepared, except as specified below.
5 However, the Director of Planning or ~~his/her~~the Director's designee may authorize phased
6 collection of the fee for a project whose work is projected to span more than one fiscal year.
7 The balance of phased payments must be paid in full one week in advance of the first
8 scheduled public hearing before the Planning Commission ~~into~~ consider the project or before
9 any Environmental Impact Report is published.

10 * * * *

11 **SEC. 31.23.1. COMMUNITY PLAN FEES.**

12 (a) The Planning Department shall charge Community Plan Fees for environmental
13 applications filed in adopted Plan Areas effective after July 1, 2005. The fee amounts shall be
14 as stated in Section 4 of Ordinance No. 149-16, ~~available in Board of Supervisors File No.~~
15 ~~160632, as amended by Ordinance No. _____, in Board of Supervisors File No. 250888, and on the~~
16 ~~website of the Board of Supervisors,~~ as stated in Section 31.22(b) of this Code, and adjusted
17 annually in accordance with the procedure established under Section 31.22(c).

18 * * * *

19
20 Section 5. This section is uncodified. It amends Section 4 of Ordinance No. 149-16, in
21 Board File No. 160632, which was subsequently amended by Ordinance No. 221-18, in Board
22 File No. 180584, Ordinance No. 189-23, in Board File No. 230559, and Ordinance
23 No. 127-24, in Board File 240456, as follows: The same fonts used to signify additions and
24 deletions as specified in the "Note" that appears under the official title of this ordinance are used here.
25

1 **PERMIT APPLICATIONS.**

2 (a) Building permit Fees for Development Applications for a change in use or
 3 alteration of an existing building, or to construct a new building, and that do not require an
 4 entitlement from the Planning Commission or Zoning Administrator, shall ~~to~~ be collected by at the
 5 time the Development Application is submitted Central Permit Bureau; provided, however, that the
 6 fees charged for Planning Department approval over-the-counter for the replacement of
 7 windows, roofs, siding, and doors shall be reduced to one-half the fee set forth below. The
 8 Planning Department initial fee amount shall not exceed 50% of the construction cost,
 9 notwithstanding the foregoing, and provided further that the fees set forth in the table below
 10 shall apply to construction with an estimated cost of \$0 to \$9,999, notwithstanding that such
 11 fees may exceed 50% of the construction cost. Applications for permit revisions are excluded
 12 from this limitation. All fee amounts shown in this section are shown in the values originally set forth
 13 in Ordinance No. 149-16, in Board File No. 160632, unless noted otherwise. The Planning
 14 Department maintains the Planning Department Fee Schedule showing the current fee amounts,
 15 inclusive of any annual adjustments.

Estimated Construction Cost	Initial Fee <u>for Development Application for Changes in Use or Alteration of An Existing Building</u>	<u>Initial Fee for Development Applications for New Buildings</u>
\$0 to \$9,999	\$359	<u>\$2,079, plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</u>

1	\$10,000 to \$49,999	\$368 plus 3.762% of cost over \$10,000	<u>\$2,079, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
2			
3			
4			
5			
6	\$50,000 to \$99,999	\$2,320 plus 2.513% of cost over \$50,000 plus \$98	<u>\$2,079, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
7		Discretionary Review	
8		Surcharge and \$321	
9		Categorical Exemption Stamp	
10		Fee	
11			
12	\$100,000 to \$499,999	\$3,603 plus 2.752% of cost over \$100,000 plus \$98	<u>\$2,080 plus 2.752% of cost</u> <u>over \$100,000, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
13		Discretionary Review	
14		Surcharge and \$321	
15		Categorical Exemption Stamp	
16		Fee	
17			
18	\$500,000 to \$999,999	\$14,819 plus 0.696% of cost over \$500,000 plus \$98	<u>\$13,298 plus 0.878% of</u> <u>cost over \$500,000, plus</u> <u>\$98 Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
19		Discretionary Review	
20		Surcharge and \$321	
21		Categorical Exemption Stamp	
22		Fee	
23			
24	\$1,000,000 to \$4,999,999	\$18,366 plus 0.274% of cost over \$1,000,000 plus \$98	<u>\$17,775 plus 0.338% of</u> <u>cost over</u>
25			

	Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee	<u>\$1,000,000, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
\$5,000,000 to \$99,999,999	\$29,502 plus .004% of cost over \$5,000,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee	<u>\$31,550 plus 0.005% of</u> <u>cost of \$5,000,000,</u> <u>plus \$98 Discretionary</u> <u>Review Surcharge</u> <u>and \$321 Categorical</u> <u>Exemption Stamp Fee</u>
\$100,000,000 or more	\$34,062 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee	<u>\$37,251, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>

(1) **Application with Verified Violations of the Planning Code:** The Planning Department shall charge \$1,271 as an inspection fee for monitoring code violation abatements, plus time and materials as set forth in Planning Code Section 350(e).

(2) **Back-Check Fee for Permit Revisions:** \$229 for the initial fee, plus time and materials as set forth in Planning Code Section 350(e), to be collected at time of permit issuance. A ~~\$25~~ surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as may be increased over time pursuant to that ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Appeals.

1 (3) **Shadow Impact Fee for New Construction or Alteration Exceeding**
2 **40 Feet in Height (Planning Code Section 295):** Additional \$526 plus time and materials as
3 set forth in Planning Code Section 350(e). A ~~\$25~~ surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of
4 Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as may be increased over time pursuant to that
5 ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the
6 Board of Appeals.

7 (4) **Public Notification Fee for Projects Requiring Public Notice**
8 **Pursuant to Planning Code Section 311:** \$54, plus \$3.26 per envelope (subject to increase
9 based on envelope and postage costs). A ~~\$25~~ surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of
10 Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as may be increased over time pursuant to that
11 ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the
12 Board of Appeals. The City's reprographics department will print and mail public notices.

13 ~~(5) — **Public Notification Fee for Projects Requiring Public Notice Pursuant to**~~
14 ~~**Planning Code Section 312:** \$54, plus \$1.13 per envelope (subject to increase based on envelope and~~
15 ~~postage costs). A \$25 surcharge shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of~~
16 ~~appeals to the Board of Appeals. The City's reprographics department will print and mail public~~
17 ~~notices.~~

18 ~~(6) — For projects with a construction cost of \$100,000,000 or more, the applicant~~
19 ~~shall be charged the permit fee for a project with a \$100,000,000 construction cost.~~

20 (57) Permits for solar panels and over-the-counter permits for solar equipment
21 installation shall be \$154 per permit. A ~~\$25~~ surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of Ordinance
22 No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as may be increased over time pursuant to that ordinance,
23 shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of
24 Appeals.

(b) — **Building Permit Applications for a New Building:** The Planning Department initial fee amount is not to exceed 50% of the construction cost provided further that the fees set forth in the table below shall apply to construction with an estimated cost of \$0 to \$9,999, notwithstanding that such fees may exceed 50% of the construction cost; notwithstanding the foregoing, applications for permit revisions are excluded from this limitation.

<i>Estimated Construction Cost</i>	<i>Initial Fee</i>
<i>\$0 to \$99,999</i>	<i>\$2,079, plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$100,000 to \$499,999</i>	<i>\$2,080 plus 2.752% of cost over \$100,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$500,000 to \$999,999</i>	<i>\$13,298 plus 0.878% of cost over \$500,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$1,000,000 to \$4,999,999</i>	<i>\$17,775 plus 0.338% of cost over \$1,000,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$5,000,000 to \$99,999,999</i>	<i>\$31,550 plus 0.005% of cost of \$5,000,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$100,000,000 or more</i>	<i>\$37,251 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>

1 ~~(1) Applications with Verified Violations of the Planning Code: \$1,271 as an~~
2 ~~inspection fee for monitoring Code violation abatements.~~

3 **(be) Demolition Applications, to be collected by Central Permit Bureau:** \$1,621. A \$25
4 surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as
5 may be increased over time pursuant to that ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate
6 the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Appeals.

7 **(ce) Fire, Police, Entertainment Commission, State Alcohol & Beverages**
8 **Control, and Health Department Permit Applications Referral Review:** \$137 initial fee
9 collected by the other departments in conjunction with current fee collections, plus time and
10 materials as set forth in Planning Code Section 350(e).

11 **(de) Sign Permit Applications, to be collected by Central Permit Bureau:** \$143. A \$25
12 surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as
13 may be increased over time pursuant to that ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate
14 the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Appeals.

15 ~~(e) **Small Business Month Fee Waiver:** No Planning Department fees shall apply for~~
16 ~~permits issued to Small Business Enterprises in the month of May for awning replacement and for signs~~
17 ~~on awnings. For purposes of this Subsection (f), a Small Business Enterprise shall be a business that~~
18 ~~has 100 or fewer employees. The Planning Department and the Department of Building Inspection~~
19 ~~shall establish a process by which those two departments will certify that an applicant is a Small~~
20 ~~Business Enterprise for the purpose of this Subsection (f) and Section 110A, Tables 1A-A and 1A-E of~~
21 ~~the Building Code.~~

22 * * * *

23 ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.

24 (a) The Planning Department shall charge the following fees to applicants for
25 projects located outside of recently adopted Plan Areas (adopted after July 1, 2005) that do

1 not require one or more of the following, which will be initiated through the adoption of an Area
2 Plan: Code amendments for the height or bulk district and General Plan amendments, as
3 specified in Administrative Code Section 31.21:

4 (1) For an initial study of a project excluding use of special expertise or
5 technical assistance, as described in Administrative Section 31.23, the initial fee shall be:

6 Where the total estimated construction cost as defined by the San Francisco
7 Building Code is between \$0 and \$9,999: \$1,203;

8 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000 or more, but less than
9 \$200,000: \$4,682 PLUS 2.276% of the cost over \$10,000;

10 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than
11 \$1,000,000: \$9,092 PLUS 1.721% of the cost over \$200,000;

12 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less
13 than \$10,000,000: \$23,127 PLUS 1.445% of the cost over \$1,000,000;

14 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more, but less
15 than \$30,000,000: \$155,622 PLUS 0.445% of the cost over \$10,000,000;

16 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$30,000,000 or more, but less
17 than \$50,000,000: \$246,327 PLUS 0.167% of the cost over \$30,000,000;

18 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$50,000,000 or more, but less
19 than \$100,000,000: \$280,403 PLUS 0.041% of the cost over \$50,000,000;

20 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$100,000,000 or more: \$300,903
21 *PLUS 0.016% of the cost over \$100,000,000.*

22 An applicant proposing major revisions to a project application that has been
23 inactive for more than six months and is assigned shall submit a new application. An applicant
24 proposing significant revisions to a project which has not been assigned and for which an
25 application is on file with the Planning Department shall be charged time and materials to

1 cover the full costs in excess of the initial fee paid. A \$120 surcharge shall be added to this
2 fee to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Supervisors.

3 (2) For preparation of an environmental impact report excluding use of
4 special expertise or technical assistance, as described in Administrative Code Section 31.23,
5 the initial fee shall be:

6 Where the total estimated construction cost as defined in the San Francisco
7 Building Code is between \$0 to \$199,999: \$26,729;

8 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than
9 \$1,000,000: \$26,729 PLUS 0.657% of the cost over \$200,000;

10 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less
11 than \$10,000,000: \$32,231 PLUS 0.445% of the cost over \$1,000,000;

12 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more, but less
13 than \$30,000,000: \$73,049 PLUS 0.182% of the cost over \$10,000,000;

14 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$30,000,000 or more, but less
15 than \$50,000,000: \$110,243 PLUS 0.049% of the cost over \$30,000,000;

16 Where said total construction cost is \$50,000,000 or more, but less than
17 \$100,000,000: \$120,381 PLUS 0.049% of the cost over \$50,000,000;

18 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$100,000,000 or more: \$145,939
19 *PLUS 0.016% of the cost over \$100,000,000.*

20 An applicant proposing major revisions to a project application that has been
21 inactive for more than six months and is assigned shall submit a new application. An applicant
22 proposing significant revisions to a project which has not been assigned and for which an
23 application is on file with the Planning Department shall be charged time and materials to
24 cover the full costs in excess of the initial fee paid.
25

1 (3) For an appeal to the Planning Commission: The fee shall be \$562 to the
2 appellant; provided, however, that the fee shall be waived if the appeal is filed by a
3 neighborhood organization that: (A) has been in existence for 24 months prior to the appeal
4 filing date, (B) is on the Planning Department's neighborhood organization notification list, and
5 (C) can demonstrate to the Planning Director or the Director's his/her designee that the
6 organization is affected by the proposed project. An exemption from paying this appeal fee
7 may be granted when the requestor's income is not enough to pay for the fee without affecting
8 ~~his or her~~requestor's ability-abilities to pay for the necessities of life, provided that the person
9 seeking the exemption demonstrates to the Planning Director or the Director's his/her designee
10 that ~~he or she~~the person is substantially affected by the proposed project.

11 (4) For an appeal to the Board of Supervisors of environmental
12 determinations, including the certification of an EIR, a negative declaration, or determination
13 of a categorical exemption, the fee shall be \$562 to the appellant; provided, however, that the
14 fee shall be waived if the appeal is filed by a neighborhood organization that: (A) has been in
15 existence for 24 months prior to the appeal filing date, (B) is on the Planning Department's
16 neighborhood organization notification list, and (C) can demonstrate to the Planning Director
17 or the Director's his/her designee that the organization is affected by the proposed project.
18 Fees shall be used to defray the cost of appeal for the Planning Department. Such fee shall
19 be refunded to the appellant in the event the Planning Department rescinds its determination
20 or the Board of Supervisors remands or rejects the environmental impact report, negative
21 declaration, or determination of a categorical exemption to the Planning Commission for
22 revisions based on issues related to the adequacy and accuracy of the environmental
23 determination. An exemption from paying this appeal fee may be granted when the
24 requestor's income is not enough to pay for the fee without affecting ~~his or her~~the requestor's
25 ability to pay for the necessities of life, provided that the person seeking the exemption

1 demonstrates to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors or the Clerk's his/her designee that ~~he or~~
2 ~~she~~ the person is substantially affected by the proposed project.

3 (5) For preparation of an addendum to an environmental impact report that
4 has previously been certified, pursuant to Section 15164 of the State CEQA Guidelines, or
5 reevaluation of a modified project for which a negative declaration has been prepared:
6 \$25,174 plus time and materials as set forth in Administrative Code Section 31.22(e).

7 (6) For preparation of a supplement to a draft or certified final environmental
8 impact report: One-half of the fee that would be required for a full environmental impact report
9 on the same project, as set forth in ~~Paragraph~~ subsection (a)(2) above, plus time and materials
10 as set forth in ~~§~~ subsection (b)(2). A \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate
11 the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Supervisors.

12 (7) ~~(A)~~—For preparation of a Certificate of Exemption from Environmental
13 Review determining that a project is categorically exempt, statutorily exempt,
14 ministerial/nonphysical, an emergency, or a planning and feasibility study: \$321 for
15 applications that require only a stamp, \$6,278 as an initial fee for applications that require a
16 Certificate of Exemption ~~Certificate~~, plus time and materials as set forth in ~~§~~ subsection (b)(2). A
17 \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to
18 the Board of Supervisors.

19 ~~(B)~~—~~For preparation of a Class 32 Certificate of Exemption from~~
20 ~~Environmental Review determining that a project is categorically exempt, the initial fee shall be:~~

21 ~~————Where the total estimated construction cost as defined by the San Francisco Building~~
22 ~~Code is between \$0 and \$9,999: \$11,544;~~

23 ~~————Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000 or more, but less than \$200,000:~~
24 ~~\$11,544 PLUS 0.201% of the cost over \$10,000;~~

1 ~~Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than~~
2 ~~\$1,000,000: \$11,926 PLUS 0.190% of the cost over \$200,000;~~

3 ~~Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less than~~
4 ~~\$10,000,000: \$13,446 PLUS 0.057% of the cost over \$1,000,000;~~

5 ~~Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more: \$18,709 PLUS~~
6 ~~0.426% of the cost over \$10,000,000.~~

7 ~~A \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to~~
8 ~~the Board of Supervisors.~~

9 (8) For preparation of an exemption that requires review of historical
10 resource issues only, the following fees apply. For a determination of whether a property is an
11 historical resource under CEQA, the fee is \$2,630. For a determination of whether a project
12 would result in a substantial adverse change in the significance of an historical resource, the
13 fee is \$3,648. A \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate the City for the
14 costs of appeals to the Board of Supervisors.

15 (9) For preparation of a letter of exemption from environmental review: \$321,
16 plus time and materials as set forth in Administrative Code Section 31.22(e).

17 (10) For review of a categorical or statutory exemption prepared by another
18 City Agency, such as the Municipal Transportation Agency or the Public Utilities Commission:
19 \$270, plus time and materials as set forth in Administrative Code Section 31.22(e).

20 (11) For reactivating an application that the Environmental Review Officer has
21 deemed withdrawn due to inactivity and the passage of time, subject to the approval of the
22 Environmental Review Officer and within six months of the date the application was deemed
23 withdrawn: \$237 plus time and materials to cover any additional staff costs.

24 (12) Monitoring Conditions of Approval and Mitigation Monitoring: Upon
25 adoption of conditions of approval and/or mitigation measures which the Environmental

1 Review Officer determines require active monitoring, the fee shall be \$1,271, as an initial fee,
2 plus time and materials as set forth in Administrative Code Section 31.22(e).

3 (b) The Planning Department shall charge the following Community Plan Fees for
4 environmental applications filed in adopted Plan Areas effective after July 1, 2005:

5 (1) For Class 1 and 3 Exemptions: same as basic fees outlined in Section
6 (a)(8) and (10) above.

7 (2) For determination of the appropriate environmental document: \$14,017
8 and any fee pursuant to Administrative Code Section 31.23.1(a)-(c). In addition, the applicant
9 shall pay the following fees as applicable-appropriate:

10 (A) If the determination is that the project qualifies for a Community
11 exemption or exclusion or General Plan exemption, the applicant shall pay a fee of \$7,659. A
12 \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to
13 the Board of Supervisors.

14 (B) If the determination is that the project does not qualify for a
15 Community exemption or exclusion, the applicant shall pay fees as set forth in ~~§~~subsection (c)
16 below.

17 (c) The fees for projects determined not to qualify for a Community exemption or
18 exclusion are as follows. A \$120 surcharge shall be added to these fees to compensate the
19 City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Supervisors:

20 (1) For an initial study excluding use of special expertise or technical
21 assistance the initial fee shall be:

22 Where the total estimated construction cost as defined by the San Francisco
23 Building Code is between \$0 and \$9,999: \$1,499;

24 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000 or more, but less than
25 \$200,000: \$6,227 PLUS 2.833% of the cost over \$10,000;

1 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than
2 \$1,000,000: \$11,715 PLUS 2.141% of the cost over \$200,000;

3 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less
4 than \$10,000,000: \$29,178 PLUS 1.796% of the cost over \$1,000,000;

5 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more, but less
6 than \$30,000,000: \$194,017 PLUS 0.553% of the cost over \$10,000,000;

7 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$30,000,000 or more, but less
8 than \$50,000,000: \$306,896 PLUS 0.208% of the cost over \$30,000,000;

9 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$50,000,000 or more, but less
10 than \$100,000,000: \$349,413 PLUS 0.049% of the cost over \$50,000,000;

11 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$100,000,000 or more: \$374,723
12 *PLUS 0.019% of the cost over \$100,000,000.*

13 An applicant proposing major revisions to a project application that has been
14 inactive for more than six months and is assigned shall submit a new application. An applicant
15 proposing significant revisions to a project which has not been assigned and for which an
16 application is on file with the Planning Department shall be charged time and materials to
17 cover the full costs in excess of the initial fee paid.

18 (2) For preparation of an environmental impact report excluding use of
19 special expertise or technical assistance, the initial fee shall be:

20 Where the total estimated construction cost as defined in the San Francisco
21 Building Code is between \$0 to \$199,999: \$33,263;

22 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than
23 \$1,000,000: \$33,263 PLUS 0.818% of the cost over \$200,000;

24 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less
25 than \$10,000,000: \$40,113 PLUS 0.553% of the cost over \$1,000,000;

1 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more, but less
2 than \$30,000,000: \$90,908 PLUS 0.227% of the cost over \$10,000,000;

3 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$30,000,000 or more, but less
4 than \$50,000,000: \$137,223 PLUS 0.061% of the cost over \$30,000,000;

5 Where said total construction cost is \$50,000,000 or more, but less than
6 \$100,000,000: \$149,941 PLUS 0.061% of the cost over \$50,000,000;

7 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$100,000,000 or more: \$181,737
8 *PLUS 0.019% of the cost over \$100,000,000.*

9 An applicant proposing major revisions to a project application that has been
10 inactive for more than six months and is assigned shall submit a new application. An applicant
11 proposing significant revisions to a project which has not been assigned and for which an
12 application is on file with the Planning Department shall be charged time and materials to
13 cover the full costs in excess of the initial fee paid.

14 (3) For the preparation of a focused Environmental Impact Report: one-half
15 the fee that would be required for a full environmental impact report, as set forth in
16 *Paragraph subsection (c)(2) above, plus time and materials.*

17 (4) The fees listed listed in subsection (c) above will sunset 20 years after the
18 effective date of Plan Adoption.

19
20 Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after
21 enactment. Enactment occurs when the Mayor signs the ordinance, the Mayor returns the
22 ordinance unsigned or does not sign the ordinance within ten days of receiving it, or the Board
23 of Supervisors overrides the Mayor's veto of the ordinance.

LEGISLATIVE DIGEST

[Planning Code - Planning Fees]

Ordinance amending the Planning Code to require certain Planning Department fees to be paid to the Department at the time the Development Application is submitted, modify the environmental review fees for large projects, and remove the separate fee schedule for “Class 32” categorical exemptions under the California Environmental Quality Act; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and making findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare pursuant to Planning Code, Section 302

Existing Law

The Planning Department’s fees are set forth in Ordinance No. 149-16, which is uncodified. The fees are indexed and increase annually based on the Consumer Price Index.

For projects that do not require a discretionary approval from the Planning Commission or Zoning Administrator, the Planning Department charges a fee that is collected by the Central Permit Bureau at the time of the project applies its building permit application.

The Planning Department charges various fees to evaluate projects under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). One of the CEQA fees is for projects that are considered exempt because they are located in urbanized areas. This is called an in-fill or Class 32 exemption. For large projects requiring an Environmental Impact Report, the Planning Department charges a fee based on the estimated cost of construction. These fees have two parts: an initial fee, and a variable fee. The initial fee is based on the whether the estimated cost of construction exceeds certain thresholds. The variable fee is based on the amount that the estimated cost of construction exceeds the specific threshold.

Amendments to Current Law

This ordinance would require fees for projects that do not require a discretionary approval from the Planning Commission or Zoning Administrator to be paid at the time of the Development Application.

This ordinance would remove the separate fee for Class 32 categorical exemptions. As a result, projects being evaluated under a Class 32 categorial exemption would pay the standard fee for categorical exemptions.

FILE NO. 250888

This ordinance would also remove the variable fee for the highest category of construction projects that require an Environmental Impact Report.

n:\legana\as2025\2500381\01865817.docx



October 28, 2025

Ms. Angela Calvillo, Clerk
Honorable Mayor Lurie
Board of Supervisors
City and County of San Francisco
City Hall, Room 244
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102

Re: **Transmittal of Planning Department Case Number 2025-008414PCA:**
Planning Fees
Board File No. 250888

Planning Commission Action: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

Dear Ms. Calvillo and Mayor Lurie,

On October 23, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting to consider the proposed Ordinance, introduced by Mayor Lurie. The proposed ordinance would amend the Planning Code to require certain Planning Department fees to be paid to the Department at the time the Development Application is submitted. The proposed Ordinance would also modify the environmental review fees for large projects and remove the separate fee schedule for “Class 32” categorical exemptions under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). At the hearing the Planning Commission adopted a recommendation of approval.

The proposed amendments are not defined as a project under CEQA Guidelines Section 15060(c)(2) and 15378 because they do not result in a physical change in the environment.

Please find attached documents relating to the actions of the Commission. If you have any questions or require further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Aaron D. Starr
Manager of Legislative Affairs

cc: Austin Yang, Deputy City Attorney
Adam Thongsavat, Liaison to the Board of Supervisors, Mayor Lurie's Office
John Carroll, Office of the Clerk of the Board

ATTACHMENTS :

Planning Commission Resolution
Planning Department Executive Summary



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 21855

HEARING DATE: October 23, 2025

Project Name: Planning Fees
Case Number: 2025-008414PCA [Board File No. 250888]
Initiated by: Mayor Lurie / Introduced September 2, 2025
Staff Contact: Veronica Flores Legislative Affairs
veronica.flores@sfgov.org, 628-652-7525
Reviewed by: Aaron Starr, Manager of Legislative Affairs
aaron.starr@sfgov.org, 628-652-7533

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE THAT WOULD AMEND THE PLANNING CODE TO REQUIRE CERTAIN PLANNING DEPARTMENT FEES TO BE PAID TO THE DEPARTMENT AT THE TIME THE DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION IS SUBMITTED, MODIFY THE ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FEES FOR LARGE PROJECTS, AND REMOVE THE SEPARATE FEE SCHEDULE FOR “CLASS 32” CATEGORICAL EXEMPTIONS UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT; AFFIRMING THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT’S DETERMINATION UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT; MAKING FINDINGS OF CONSISTENCY WITH THE GENERAL PLAN, AND THE EIGHT PRIORITY POLICIES OF PLANNING CODE, SECTION 101.1; AND MAKING FINDINGS OF PUBLIC NECESSITY, CONVENIENCE, AND WELFARE PURSUANT TO PLANNING CODE, SECTION 302.

WHEREAS, on September 2, 2025 Mayor Lurie introduced a proposed Ordinance under Board of Supervisors (hereinafter “Board”) File Number 250888, which would amend the Planning Code to require certain Planning Department fees to be paid to the Department at the time the Development Application is submitted, modify the environmental review fees for large projects, and remove the separate fee schedule for “Class 32” categorical exemptions under the California Environmental Quality Act;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a duly noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting to consider the proposed Ordinance on October 23, 2025; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed Ordinance has been determined to be categorically exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act Section 15378 and 15060(c)(2); and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has further considered written materials and oral testimony presented on behalf of Department staff and other interested parties; and

WHEREAS, all pertinent documents may be found in the files of the Department, as the Custodian of Records, at 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the proposed Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds from the facts presented that the public necessity, convenience, and general welfare require the proposed amendment; and

MOVED, that the Planning Commission hereby adopts a **recommendation for approval** of the proposed ordinance.

Findings

Having reviewed the materials identified in the preamble above, and having heard all testimony and arguments, this Commission finds, concludes, and determines as follows:

The Department supports the proposed Ordinance because it improves the transparency, predictability, and fairness of the Planning Department's fee structure. By aligning fee collection with the timing of staff review, the Ordinance ensures that the Department is compensated for its work in a timely manner, regardless of whether a project proceeds to permitting.

General Plan Compliance

The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the following Objectives and Policies of the General Plan:

HOUSING ELEMENT

Policy 26

Streamline and simplify permit processes to provide more equitable access to the application process, improve certainty of outcomes, and ensure meeting State- and local-required timelines, especially for 100% affordable housing and shelter projects.

The proposed Ordinance advances Policy 26 of the Housing Element, which calls for streamlining and simplifying the permit process to ensure more equitable access and greater predictability in outcomes. While this policy is housed within the Housing Element, the proposed Ordinance applies these same principles—transparency and efficiency—to how fees are calculated and collected.

Planning Code Section 101 Findings

The proposed amendments to the Planning Code are consistent with the eight Priority Policies set forth in Section 101.1(b) of the Planning Code in that:

1. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses enhanced;

The proposed Ordinance would not have a negative effect on neighborhood serving retail uses and will not have a negative effect on opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of neighborhood-serving retail.

2. That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods;

The proposed Ordinance would not have a negative effect on housing or neighborhood character.

3. That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on the City's supply of affordable housing.

4. That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or neighborhood parking;

The proposed Ordinance would not result in commuter traffic impeding MUNI transit service or overburdening the streets or neighborhood parking.

5. That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting our industrial and service sectors from displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for resident employment and ownership in these sectors be enhanced;

The proposed Ordinance would not cause displacement of the industrial or service sectors due to office development, and future opportunities for resident employment or ownership in these sectors would not be impaired.

6. That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life in an earthquake;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on City's preparedness against injury and loss of life in an earthquake.

7. That the landmarks and historic buildings be preserved;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on the City's Landmarks and historic buildings.

8. That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from

development;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on the City's parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas.

Planning Code Section 302 Findings.

The Planning Commission finds from the facts presented that the public necessity, convenience and general welfare require the proposed amendments to the Planning Code as set forth in Section 302.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Commission hereby ADOPTS A RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL the proposed Ordinance as described in this Resolution.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Commission at its meeting on October 23, 2023.



Jonas P. Ionin
Commission Secretary

Jonas P Ionin Digitally signed by Jonas P Ionin
Date: 2025.10.23 16:31:22 -07'00'

- AYES: Campbell, McGarry, Williams, Braun, Imperial, Moore, So
- NOES: None
- ABSENT: None
- ADOPTED: October 23, 2025



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATIVE CODES TEXT AMENDMENT

HEARING DATE: OCTOBER 23, 2025

90-Day Deadline: December 14, 2025

Project Name: Planning Fees
Case Number: 2025-008414PCA [Board File No. 250888]
Initiated by: Mayor Lurie / Introduced September 2, 2025
Staff Contact: Veronica Flores Legislative Affairs
veronica.flores@sfgov.org, 628-652-7525
Reviewed by: Aaron Starr, Manager of Legislative Affairs
aaron.starr@sfgov.org, 628-652-7533
Environmental Review: Not a Project Under CEQA

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

Planning Code Amendment

The proposed Ordinance would amend the Planning Code to require certain Planning Department fees to be paid to the Department at the time the Development Application is submitted. The proposed Ordinance would also modify the environmental review fees for large projects and remove the separate fee schedule for “Class 32” categorical exemptions under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

The Way It Is Now	The Way It Would Be
PLANNING CODE AMENDMENTS	
“Development Application” is defined under Section 102.	The definition of “Development Application” would be updated to revise the types of applicable applications. It would also clarify that the

	application must be deemed complete and include all necessary information for environmental review, Planning Code compliance, and General Plan conformity.
Fees are based on estimated construction costs, but the original fee amounts from Ordinance No. 149-16 are not clearly distinguished from adjusted amounts.	The proposed Ordinance would clarify that the fee amounts listed in Ordinance No. 149-16 are the original 2016 values, and that the current fee schedule, including annual CPI adjustments, is available at the Department and online.
A temporary Small Business Fee Waiver was in effect during May 2023 and May 2024 for awning replacement and signage.	The proposed Ordinance would remove this expired temporary Small Business Fee Waiver.
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE AMENDMENTS	
Fees for Planning Department review are collected at the time of environmental evaluation.	Fees would instead be collected at the time a Development Application is submitted, aligning payment with the timing of staff review.
Permit application fees are presented in two separate tables: one for new buildings and one for alterations or changes in use.	The proposed Ordinance would consolidate these into a single table, distinguishing between new buildings and alterations or changes in use for ease.
A \$25 surcharge is applied to various permit types, including but not limited to permit revisions, shadow impacts, and public notifications.	The surcharge would be updated to \$44 to reflect Ordinance No. 127-24, with a note that future increases may occur under that ordinance.
A public notification fee is listed for projects requiring notice under Planning Code Section 312.	This fee would be eliminated, as Section 312 has been repealed.
For projects with construction costs of \$100 million or more, the applicant is charged a scaled fee based on the total cost.	This provision would be removed. Instead, a flat environmental review fee of \$300,903 would apply to large projects. Additional fees may be assessed on a time-and-materials basis for any work that exceeds the scope of the flat fee.
Class 32 categorical exemptions under CEQA have a separate fee schedule.	The separate fee schedule for Class 32 exemptions would be eliminated, and these projects would be charged the same fees as other categorical exemptions.
Community Plan Fees only reference community exemptions or exclusions.	The proposed Ordinance would update this section to include General Plan exemptions as well.
Some fees and code references are outdated or inconsistent.	Outdated fees and incorrect references would be removed or corrected for clarity and consistency.

Background

Since 2017, the California Legislature has passed several streamlining bills that allow certain development projects to proceed through a ministerial approval process. While these projects do not require discretionary entitlements from the Planning Commission, they still require staff review to ensure compliance with objective standards. Under current law, the Planning Department does not collect fees for this review until a

building permit is filed—often months or years after the review is completed. In some cases, the permit is never filed, and the Department receives no compensation for its work. This Ordinance addresses that gap by aligning fee collection with the timing of staff review.

Issues and Considerations

Timing of Payment

The Ordinance would shift the timing of fee collection from the issuance of a building permit to the submission of a Development Application. This change ensures that the Department is compensated for its work even if a project does not proceed to permitting. It also aligns with the City’s broader PermitSF initiative to streamline and modernize permitting processes.

Environmental Review Fees

Large Project Fees

Currently, environmental review fees for large projects scale upward based on construction cost. However, staff analysis has shown that the actual time required to review large projects does not increase proportionally. The Ordinance proposes a flat fee of \$300,903 for projects with construction costs of \$100 million or more. This change makes the fee structure more predictable and equitable, while still allowing the Department to charge for time and materials if additional work is required.

Class 32 Categorical Exemptions

The Ordinance would eliminate the separate fee schedule for Class 32 categorical exemptions and consolidate these fees with other categorical exemptions. This change simplifies the fee structure and ensures consistency across project types.

Transparency and Efficiency

The proposed Ordinance improves transparency by clarifying the origin and indexing of fees and consolidating fee tables. It also supports the City’s goals of efficient and predictable permitting by ensuring that fees are collected at the appropriate time and reflect the actual cost of services.

General Plan Compliance

The proposed Ordinance advances Policy 26 of the Housing Element, which calls for streamlining and simplifying the permit process to ensure more equitable access and greater predictability in outcomes. While this policy is housed within the Housing Element, the proposed Ordinance applies these same principles—transparency and efficiency—to how fees are calculated and collected.

Racial and Social Equity Analysis

The proposed Ordinance promotes equity by ensuring that all applicants—regardless of project size or type—are subject to a consistent and transparent fee structure. By collecting fees earlier in the process, the

Department can better allocate resources to support timely project review, which benefits all communities, including those historically underserved by the planning process.

The proposed Ordinance also eliminates outdated or duplicative fees that may have created confusion or barriers for small businesses and community-based projects. For example, the removal of the expired Small Business fee waiver clarifies the current fee landscape, while the consolidation of exemption fees ensures that similar projects are treated equitably.

Implementation

The Department has determined that this ordinance will not impact our current implementation procedures.

Recommendation

The Department recommends that the Commission **adopt a recommendation for approval** of the proposed Ordinance and adopt the attached Draft Resolution to that effect.

Basis for Recommendation

The Department supports the proposed Ordinance because it improves the transparency, predictability, and fairness of the Planning Department's fee structure. By aligning fee collection with the timing of staff review, the Ordinance ensures that the Department is compensated for its work in a timely manner, regardless of whether a project proceeds to permitting. This change supports the Department's fiscal sustainability and enhances its ability to deliver high-quality service.

The proposed Ordinance also simplifies and modernizes the fee structure by consolidating tables, removing outdated provisions, and clarifying the basis for fee calculations. These improvements align with the City's PermitSF goals and broader efforts to streamline permitting and reduce administrative burdens for applicants.

Finally, the proposed changes to environmental review fees for large projects ensure that fees are more proportionate to actual staff effort, while preserving the Department's ability to recover costs through time and materials billing. This balanced approach supports both efficiency and equity in the planning process.

Required Commission Action

The proposed Ordinance is before the Commission so that it may adopt a recommendation of approval, disapproval, or approval with modifications.

Environmental Review

The proposed amendments are not defined as a project under CEQA Guidelines Section 15060(c)(2) and 15378 because they do not result in a physical change in the environment.

Public Comment

As of the date of this report, the Planning Department has not received any public comment regarding the proposed Ordinance.

ATTACHMENTS:

- Exhibit A: Draft Planning Commission Resolution
- Exhibit B: Board of Supervisors File No. 250888

Portions of this report were drafted and/or edited with the assistance of Microsoft Copilot, in accordance with the City and County of San Francisco's policy on the use of generative AI tools.

This page intentionally blank.



EXHIBIT A

PLANNING COMMISSION
DRAFT RESOLUTION

HEARING DATE: October 23, 2025

Project Name: Planning Fees
Case Number: 2025-008414PCA [Board File No. 250888]
Initiated by: Mayor Lurie / Introduced September 2, 2025
Staff Contact: Veronica Flores Legislative Affairs
veronica.flores@sfgov.org, 628-652-7525
Reviewed by: Aaron Starr, Manager of Legislative Affairs
aaron.starr@sfgov.org, 628-652-7533

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE THAT WOULD AMEND THE PLANNING CODE TO REQUIRE CERTAIN PLANNING DEPARTMENT FEES TO BE PAID TO THE DEPARTMENT AT THE TIME THE DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION IS SUBMITTED, MODIFY THE ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FEES FOR LARGE PROJECTS, AND REMOVE THE SEPARATE FEE SCHEDULE FOR “CLASS 32” CATEGORICAL EXEMPTIONS UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT; AFFIRMING THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT’S DETERMINATION UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT; MAKING FINDINGS OF CONSISTENCY WITH THE GENERAL PLAN, AND THE EIGHT PRIORITY POLICIES OF PLANNING CODE, SECTION 101.1; AND MAKING FINDINGS OF PUBLIC NECESSITY, CONVENIENCE, AND WELFARE PURSUANT TO PLANNING CODE, SECTION 302.

WHEREAS, on September 2, 2025 Mayor Lurie introduced a proposed Ordinance under Board of Supervisors (hereinafter “Board”) File Number 250888, which would amend the Planning Code to require certain Planning Department fees to be paid to the Department at the time the Development Application is submitted, modify the environmental review fees for large projects, and remove the separate fee schedule for “Class 32” categorical exemptions under the California Environmental Quality Act;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a duly noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting to consider the proposed Ordinance on October 23, 2025; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed Ordinance has been determined to be categorically exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act Section 15378 and 15060(c)(2); and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has further considered written materials and oral testimony presented on behalf of Department staff and other interested parties; and

WHEREAS, all pertinent documents may be found in the files of the Department, as the Custodian of Records, at 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the proposed Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds from the facts presented that the public necessity, convenience, and general welfare require the proposed amendment; and

MOVED, that the Planning Commission hereby adopts a **recommendation for approval** of the proposed ordinance.

Findings

Having reviewed the materials identified in the preamble above, and having heard all testimony and arguments, this Commission finds, concludes, and determines as follows:

The Department supports the proposed Ordinance because it improves the transparency, predictability, and fairness of the Planning Department's fee structure. By aligning fee collection with the timing of staff review, the Ordinance ensures that the Department is compensated for its work in a timely manner, regardless of whether a project proceeds to permitting.

General Plan Compliance

The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the following Objectives and Policies of the General Plan:

HOUSING ELEMENT

Policy 26

Streamline and simplify permit processes to provide more equitable access to the application process, improve certainty of outcomes, and ensure meeting State- and local-required timelines, especially for 100% affordable housing and shelter projects.

The proposed Ordinance advances Policy 26 of the Housing Element, which calls for streamlining and simplifying the permit process to ensure more equitable access and greater predictability in outcomes. While this policy is housed within the Housing Element, the proposed Ordinance applies these same principles—transparency and efficiency—to how fees are calculated and collected.

Planning Code Section 101 Findings

The proposed amendments to the Planning Code are consistent with the eight Priority Policies set forth in Section 101.1(b) of the Planning Code in that:

1. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses enhanced;

The proposed Ordinance would not have a negative effect on neighborhood serving retail uses and will not have a negative effect on opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of neighborhood-serving retail.

2. That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods;

The proposed Ordinance would not have a negative effect on housing or neighborhood character.

3. That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on the City's supply of affordable housing.

4. That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or neighborhood parking;

The proposed Ordinance would not result in commuter traffic impeding MUNI transit service or overburdening the streets or neighborhood parking.

5. That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting our industrial and service sectors from displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for resident employment and ownership in these sectors be enhanced;

The proposed Ordinance would not cause displacement of the industrial or service sectors due to office development, and future opportunities for resident employment or ownership in these sectors would not be impaired.

6. That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life in an earthquake;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on City's preparedness against injury and loss of life in an earthquake.

7. That the landmarks and historic buildings be preserved;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on the City's Landmarks and historic

buildings.

8. That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from development;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on the City's parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas.

Planning Code Section 302 Findings.

The Planning Commission finds from the facts presented that the public necessity, convenience and general welfare require the proposed amendments to the Planning Code as set forth in Section 302.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Commission hereby ADOPTS A RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL the proposed Ordinance as described in this Resolution.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Commission at its meeting on October 23, 2023.

Jonas P. Ionin
Commission Secretary

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ADOPTED: October 23, 2025

EXHIBIT B

1 [Planning Code - Planning Fees]

2

3 **Ordinance amending the Planning Code to require certain Planning Department fees to**
4 **be paid to the Department at the time the Development Application is submitted,**
5 **modify the environmental review fees for large projects, and remove the separate fee**
6 **schedule for “Class 32” categorical exemptions under the California Environmental**
7 **Quality Act; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California**
8 **Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and**
9 **the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and making findings of**
10 **public necessity, convenience, and welfare pursuant to Planning Code, Section 302.**

11 NOTE: **Unchanged Code text and uncodified text** are in plain Arial font.
12 **Additions to Codes** are in *single-underline italics Times New Roman font*.
13 **Deletions to Codes** are in *strikethrough italics Times New Roman font*.
14 **Board amendment additions** are in double-underlined Arial font.
15 **Board amendment deletions** are in ~~strikethrough Arial font~~.
16 **Asterisks (* * * *)** indicate the omission of unchanged Code
17 subsections or parts of tables.

18 Be it ordained by the People of the City and County of San Francisco:

19

20 Section 1. Land Use and Environmental Findings.

21 (a) The Planning Department has determined that the actions contemplated in this
22 ordinance comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resources
23 Code Sections 21000 et seq.). Said determination is on file with the Clerk of the Board of
24 Supervisors in File No. ____ and is incorporated herein by reference. The Board affirms this
25 determination.

(b) On _____, the Planning Commission, in Resolution No. _____,
adopted findings that the actions contemplated in this ordinance are consistent, on balance,

1 with the City's General Plan and eight priority policies of Planning Code Section 101.1. The
2 Board adopts these findings as its own. A copy of said Resolution is on file with the Clerk of
3 the Board of Supervisors in File No. _____, and is incorporated herein by reference.

4 (c) Pursuant to Planning Code Section 302, this Board finds that these Planning Code
5 amendments will serve the public necessity, convenience, and welfare for the reasons set
6 forth in Planning Commission Resolution No. _____, and the Board adopts such reasons
7 as its own. A copy of said resolution is on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File
8 No. _____ and is incorporated herein by reference.

9
10 Section 2. Background and General Findings.

11 (a) In 2016, the Board adopted Ordinance No. 149-16 to establish initial Planning
12 Department fees and to authorize the Controller to adjust the fees each year to reflect
13 changes in the two-year average Consumer Price Index (CPI) change for the San
14 Francisco/San Jose Primary Metropolitan Area. The Planning Department publishes the Fee
15 Schedule showing the current fee amounts, inclusive of annual adjustments, in an Appendix
16 to the Planning Code, and posts it on the Planning Department's website. In addition, the Fee
17 Schedule is available at the main office of the Department.

18 (b) Unless otherwise noted, the existing fee amounts shown in Section 5 of this
19 ordinance are those originally enacted in 2016 in Ordinance No. 149-16, and they have not
20 been changed to reflect annual adjustments based on the Consumer Price Index.

21 (c) Since 2016, the Board has adopted several ordinances amending Ordinance No,
22 146-16, as follows:

23 (1) Ordinance No. 221-18, which made amendments clarifying the fees
24 applicable to projects with no or very low construction costs, and changed the fees for
25 transportation analysis.

1 (2) Ordinance No. 189-23, which waived certain fees during Small Business
2 Month.

3 (3) Ordinance No. 127-24, which made amendments to the Board of Appeals
4 fee surcharge.

5 (d) As of September 2, 2025, there is also a pending ordinance, in Board File No.
6 250440, that would amend the surcharge for appeals to the Board of Supervisors.

7 (e) Since 2017, the Legislature has passed several “streamlining” bills that establish a
8 ministerial approval pathway for development approvals, which has increased the number of
9 projects that do not require discretionary entitlements from the Planning Commission. Such
10 projects still require Planning Department staff review to ensure compliance with state and
11 local objective standards. As the Planning Code now stands, fees for this review are not
12 assessed until a project has submitted a building permit. As a result, the Planning Department
13 does not reliably receive compensation for staff review in a timely manner, and in cases of
14 projects that stall or never seek a building permit, does not receive any compensation.

15 (f) This ordinance ensures that the Planning Department is compensated for its review
16 of building permits by aligning the timing of payment for such review with the time that
17 Planning Department staff review the development application. The ordinance does not
18 modify or change the amount of the fees paid for this review.

19 (g) This ordinance also reduces government constraints on development and
20 enhances government efficiency by standardizing the reduction of certain fees for large
21 projects subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Updating these fees will
22 create a clearer pathway for projects to proceed to development while allowing the Planning
23 Department to operate in a fiscally sustainable manner in reviewing development applications.
24 The reductions in CEQA fees would apply to a project that submits a development application
25 on or after September 2, 2025, the date of introduction of this ordinance at the Board of

1 Supervisors.

2 (h) Based on prior amendments to Ordinance No. 149-16, this ordinance makes
3 conforming amendments clarifying the date certain fees were established.

4 (i) Fast, predictable, and transparent permitting processes and reduced fee burdens
5 will help to create new jobs, businesses, and homes in San Francisco, as well as facilitate the
6 City’s economic recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. Commonly referred to as
7 “PermitSF,” the City’s effort to reform permitting consists of improving the customer
8 experience by streamlining approval processes; promoting governmental accountability to
9 provide certainty about the delivery of government services; and centralizing technology to
10 create a single point of permitting access.

11
12 Section 3. Articles 1 and 3.5 of the Planning Code are hereby amended by revising
13 Sections 102 and 350, to read as follows:

14
15 **SEC. 102. DEFINITIONS.**

16 * * * *

17 **“Development Application.”** ~~shall mean a~~Any application for a land use authorization or
18 entitlement, including but not limited to a Project Authorization, building permit, site permit,
19 Conditional Use, Variance, Large Project Authorization, HOME-SF Project Authorization,
20 authorization pursuant to Article 3 of the Planning Code ~~Sections 305.1, 309, 309.1, or 322~~, or for
21 any other authorization of a development project required to be approved by the Planning
22 Department, Zoning Administrator, Historic Preservation Commission, or Planning Commission,
23 that has been deemed complete by the Planning Department and includes any information necessary to
24 conduct environmental review, determine Planning Code compliance, and conformity with the General
25 Plan.

1 * * * *

2
3 **SEC. 350. FEES.**

4 * * * *

5 (e) **Estimated Construction Costs.** Estimated construction costs are as defined by
6 the San Francisco Building Code. Certain of the fees specified in Section 4 of Ordinance No.
7 149-16 in Board of Supervisors File No. 160632 place a limit on the fee based on its not
8 exceeding a specified percentage of construction cost. This limit shall apply to certain fees, as
9 set forth in Ordinance No. 149-16, ~~and~~ Ordinance No. 221-18, amending Ordinance No. 149-
10 16, in Board of Supervisors File No. 180584, and Ordinance No. _____, further amending Ordinance
11 No. 149-16, in Board of Supervisors File No. _____. Unless otherwise noted, the fee amounts shown
12 in Ordinance No. 149-16 are the amounts originally established in 2016. The Planning Department
13 maintains the Department's Fee Schedule, which includes any annual adjustments, and is available at
14 the Department and on the Department's website.

15 * * * *

16 (g) **Time and Materials.** The Planning Department shall charge the applicant for any
17 time and materials costs incurred in excess of the initial fee charged if required to recover the
18 Department's costs for providing services.

19 (1) The Department shall charge time and materials to recover the cost of
20 correcting code violations and violations of Planning Commission and Department conditions
21 of approval of use if such costs are not covered by the monitoring fee for conditions of
22 approval specified in the Planning Department Fee Schedule.

23 (2) Where a different limitation on time and materials charges is set forth
24 elsewhere in this Article 3.5, that limitation shall prevail.

1 (3) The Planning Department may also charge the applicant for any time and
2 materials costs incurred by ~~another department~~ or agencies of the City and County of San
3 Francisco, or may authorize such other departments or agencies ~~of the City and County~~ to
4 charge directly for any time and materials costs incurred by the respective department or
5 agency to recover the cost of correcting code violations and violations of Planning
6 Commission and Department conditions of approval.

7 * * * *

8 (j) **Deferred or Reduced Fee; Fee Waivers.**

9 * * * *

10 (3) Certain of the fees charged in accordance with subsections (b) and (c) are
11 subject in some circumstances to waiver, as stated in Section 4 of Ordinance No. 149-16-~~in~~
12 ~~Board of Supervisors File No. 160632~~, or as stated below. Description of the waivers below does
13 not affect the other waiver provisions in Section 4 of Ordinance No. 149-16.-

14 Small Business Month Fee Waivers: No Planning Department fees shall apply to
15 a Small Business that applies for a permit for awning replacement or signs on awnings during
16 the month of May. ~~No Planning Department fees shall apply to a Small Business that applies for a~~
17 ~~permit for a new awning installation or a Business Sign pursuant to Section 604 during the months of~~
18 ~~May 2023 and May 2024.~~ For purposes of this subsection (j)(3), a Small Business shall be a
19 business with a total workforce of 100 or fewer full-time employees. To the extent this
20 provision for Small Business Month Fee Waivers differs from the description in subsection (f)
21 on page 43 of Ordinance No. 149-16, this provision governs.

22 * * * *

23
24 Section 4. Chapter 31, Article IV of the Administrative Code is amended by revising
25 Sections 31.22, and 31.23.1, to read as follows:

1 **SEC. 31.22. FEES.**

2 * * * *

3 (b) **Initial Base Fees.** The *initial base* fees to be charged and collected by the
4 Department for the activities performed by the Department under Chapter 31 of this Code are
5 stated in Section 4 of Ordinance No. ~~149-16~~ _____, ~~available in Board of Supervisors File No.~~
6 ~~160632, as amended by Ordinance No.~~ _____, in Board of Supervisors File No. 250888, and on the
7 website of the Board of Supervisors. The *initial base* fees stated in Section 4 of that ordinance
8 are the fees in effect as of the date of introduction of ~~the~~ Ordinance No. 149-16.

9 (c) **Annual Adjustment of Initial Base Fees.** Consistent with preexisting law,
10 beginning with the setting of fees for fiscal year 2016-2017, the Controller will annually adjust
11 the base fee amounts referenced in subsection (b) and *originally* stated in Section 4 of
12 Ordinance No. ~~149-16 in Board of Supervisors File No. 160632~~, without further action by the
13 Board of Supervisors, to reflect changes in the two-year average Consumer Price Index (CPI)
14 change for the San Francisco/San Jose Primary Metropolitan Area (PMSA). This process will
15 occur as follows.

16 No later than April 15 of each year, the Director shall submit the Department's current
17 Fee Schedule to the Controller, who shall apply the CPI adjustment to produce a new Fee
18 Schedule for the fiscal year beginning July 1. No later than May 15 of each year, the
19 Controller shall ~~file the~~ file a report with the Board of Supervisors reporting the new Fee Schedule
20 and certifying that: (1) the fees produce sufficient revenue to support the costs of providing the
21 services for which the fee is charged and (2) the fees do not produce revenue that exceeds
22 the costs of providing the services for which each permit fee is charged.

23 * * * *

24 (f) **Time for Payment.** The fee specified for an initial study of a project excluding use
25 of special expertise or technical assistance shall be paid to the Planning Department at the

1 time of the filing of the ~~environmental evaluation~~ Development Application. Where an
2 environmental impact report is determined to be required, the fee specified for preparation of
3 an Eenvironmental Impact Report excluding use of special expertise or technical assistance
4 shall be paid at the time the Notice of Preparation is prepared, except as specified below.
5 However, the Director of Planning or ~~his/her~~ the Director's designee may authorize phased
6 collection of the fee for a project whose work is projected to span more than one fiscal year.
7 The balance of phased payments must be paid in full one week in advance of the first
8 scheduled public hearing before the Planning Commission ~~into~~ consider the project or before
9 any Environmental Impact Report is published.

10 * * * *

11 **SEC. 31.23.1. COMMUNITY PLAN FEES.**

12 (a) The Planning Department shall charge Community Plan Fees for environmental
13 applications filed in adopted Plan Areas effective after July 1, 2005. The fee amounts shall be
14 as stated in Section 4 of Ordinance No. 149-16, ~~available in Board of Supervisors File No.~~
15 ~~160632, as amended by Ordinance No. _____, in Board of Supervisors File No. 250888, and on the~~
16 ~~website of the Board of Supervisors,~~ as stated in Section 31.22(b) of this Code, and adjusted
17 annually in accordance with the procedure established under Section 31.22(c).

18 * * * *

19
20 Section 5. This section is uncodified. It amends Section 4 of Ordinance No. 149-16, in
21 Board File No. 160632, which was subsequently amended by Ordinance No. 221-18, in Board
22 File No. 180584, Ordinance No. 189-23, in Board File No. 230559, and Ordinance
23 No. 127-24, in Board File 240456, as follows: The same fonts used to signify additions and
24 deletions as specified in the "Note" that appears under the official title of this ordinance are used here.
25

1 **PERMIT APPLICATIONS.**

2 (a) ~~Building permit~~ Fees for Development Applications for a change in use or
 3 alteration of an existing building; or to construct a new building, and that do not require an
 4 entitlement from the Planning Commission or Zoning Administrator, shall ~~to~~ be collected by at the
 5 time the Development Application is submitted ~~Central Permit Bureau~~; provided, however, that the
 6 fees charged for Planning Department approval over-the-counter for the replacement of
 7 windows, roofs, siding, and doors shall be reduced to one-half the fee set forth below. The
 8 Planning Department initial fee amount shall not exceed 50% of the construction cost,
 9 notwithstanding the foregoing, and provided further that the fees set forth in the table below
 10 shall apply to construction with an estimated cost of \$0 to \$9,999, notwithstanding that such
 11 fees may exceed 50% of the construction cost. Applications for permit revisions are excluded
 12 from this limitation. All fee amounts shown in this section are shown in the values originally set forth
 13 in Ordinance No. 149-16, in Board File No. 160632, unless noted otherwise. The Planning
 14 Department maintains the Planning Department Fee Schedule showing the current fee amounts,
 15 inclusive of any annual adjustments.

Estimated Construction Cost	Initial Fee <u>for Development</u> <u>Application for Changes in Use</u> <u>or Alteration of An Existing</u> <u>Building</u>	<u>Initial Fee for</u> <u>Development Applications</u> <u>for New Buildings</u>
\$0 to \$9,999	\$359	<u>\$2,079, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

\$10,000 to \$49,999	\$368 plus 3.762% of cost over \$10,000	<u>\$2,079, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
\$50,000 to \$99,999	\$2,320 plus 2.513% of cost over \$50,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee	<u>\$2,079, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
\$100,000 to \$499,999	\$3,603 plus 2.752% of cost over \$100,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee	<u>\$2,080 plus 2.752% of cost over \$100,000, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
\$500,000 to \$999,999	\$14,819 plus 0.696% of cost over \$500,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee	<u>\$13,298 plus 0.878% of cost over \$500,000, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
\$1,000,000 to \$4,999,999	\$18,366 plus 0.274% of cost over \$1,000,000 plus \$98	<u>\$17,775 plus 0.338% of cost over</u>

	Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee	<u>\$1,000,000, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>
\$5,000,000 to \$99,999,999	\$29,502 plus .004% of cost over \$5,000,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee	<u>\$31,550 plus 0.005% of</u> <u>cost of \$5,000,000,</u> <u>plus \$98 Discretionary</u> <u>Review Surcharge</u> <u>and \$321 Categorical</u> <u>Exemption Stamp Fee</u>
\$100,000,000 or more	\$34,062 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee	<u>\$37,251, plus \$98</u> <u>Discretionary Review</u> <u>Surcharge and \$321</u> <u>Categorical Exemption</u> <u>Stamp Fee</u>

(1) **Application with Verified Violations of the Planning Code:** The Planning Department shall charge \$1,271 as an inspection fee for monitoring code violation abatements, plus time and materials as set forth in Planning Code Section 350(e).

(2) **Back-Check Fee for Permit Revisions:** \$229 for the initial fee, plus time and materials as set forth in Planning Code Section 350(e), to be collected at time of permit issuance. A ~~\$25~~ surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as may be increased over time pursuant to that ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Appeals.

1 (3) **Shadow Impact Fee for New Construction or Alteration Exceeding**
2 **40 Feet in Height (Planning Code Section 295):** Additional \$526 plus time and materials as
3 set forth in Planning Code Section 350(e). A ~~\$25~~ surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of
4 Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as may be increased over time pursuant to that
5 ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the
6 Board of Appeals.

7 (4) **Public Notification Fee for Projects Requiring Public Notice**
8 **Pursuant to Planning Code Section 311:** \$54, plus \$3.26 per envelope (subject to increase
9 based on envelope and postage costs). A ~~\$25~~ surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of
10 Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as may be increased over time pursuant to that
11 ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the
12 Board of Appeals. The City's reprographics department will print and mail public notices.

13 ~~(5) — **Public Notification Fee for Projects Requiring Public Notice Pursuant to**~~
14 ~~**Planning Code Section 312:** \$54, plus \$1.13 per envelope (subject to increase based on envelope and~~
15 ~~postage costs). A \$25 surcharge shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of~~
16 ~~appeals to the Board of Appeals. The City's reprographics department will print and mail public~~
17 ~~notices.~~

18 ~~(6) — For projects with a construction cost of \$100,000,000 or more, the applicant~~
19 ~~shall be charged the permit fee for a project with a \$100,000,000 construction cost.~~

20 (57) Permits for solar panels and over-the-counter permits for solar equipment
21 installation shall be \$154 per permit. A ~~\$25~~ surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of Ordinance
22 No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as may be increased over time pursuant to that ordinance,
23 shall be added to the fees to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of
24 Appeals.

(b) — **Building Permit Applications for a New Building:** *The Planning Department initial fee amount is not to exceed 50% of the construction cost provided further that the fees set forth in the table below shall apply to construction with an estimated cost of \$0 to \$9,999, notwithstanding that such fees may exceed 50% of the construction cost; notwithstanding the foregoing, applications for permit revisions are excluded from this limitation.*

<i>Estimated Construction Cost</i>	<i>Initial Fee</i>
<i>\$0 to \$99,999</i>	<i>\$2,079, plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$100,000 to \$499,999</i>	<i>\$2,080 plus 2.752% of cost over \$100,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$500,000 to \$999,999</i>	<i>\$13,298 plus 0.878% of cost over \$500,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$1,000,000 to \$4,999,999</i>	<i>\$17,775 plus 0.338% of cost over \$1,000,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$5,000,000 to \$99,999,999</i>	<i>\$31,550 plus 0.005% of cost of \$5,000,000 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>
<i>\$100,000,000 or more</i>	<i>\$37,251 plus \$98 Discretionary Review Surcharge and \$321 Categorical Exemption Stamp Fee</i>

1 ~~(1) Applications with Verified Violations of the Planning Code: \$1,271 as an~~
2 ~~inspection fee for monitoring Code violation abatements.~~

3 **(be) Demolition Applications, to be collected by Central Permit Bureau:** \$1,621. A \$25
4 surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as
5 may be increased over time pursuant to that ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate
6 the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Appeals.

7 **(cd) Fire, Police, Entertainment Commission, State Alcohol & Beverages**
8 **Control, and Health Department Permit Applications Referral Review:** \$137 initial fee
9 collected by the other departments in conjunction with current fee collections, plus time and
10 materials as set forth in Planning Code Section 350(e).

11 **(de) Sign Permit Applications, to be collected by Central Permit Bureau:** \$143. A \$25
12 surcharge of \$44 as of the effective date of Ordinance No. 127-24, in Board File No. 240456, and as
13 may be increased over time pursuant to that ordinance, shall be added to the fees to compensate
14 the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Appeals.

15 ~~(e) **Small Business Month Fee Waiver:** No Planning Department fees shall apply for~~
16 ~~permits issued to Small Business Enterprises in the month of May for awning replacement and for signs~~
17 ~~on awnings. For purposes of this Subsection (f), a Small Business Enterprise shall be a business that~~
18 ~~has 100 or fewer employees. The Planning Department and the Department of Building Inspection~~
19 ~~shall establish a process by which those two departments will certify that an applicant is a Small~~
20 ~~Business Enterprise for the purpose of this Subsection (f) and Section 110A, Tables IA-A and IA-E of~~
21 ~~the Building Code.~~

22 * * * *

23 **ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.**

24 (a) The Planning Department shall charge the following fees to applicants for
25 projects located outside of recently adopted Plan Areas (adopted after July 1, 2005) that do

1 not require one or more of the following, which will be initiated through the adoption of an Area
2 Plan: Code amendments for the height or bulk district and General Plan amendments, as
3 specified in Administrative Code Section 31.21:

4 (1) For an initial study of a project excluding use of special expertise or
5 technical assistance, as described in Administrative Section 31.23, the initial fee shall be:

6 Where the total estimated construction cost as defined by the San Francisco
7 Building Code is between \$0 and \$9,999: \$1,203;

8 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000 or more, but less than
9 \$200,000: \$4,682 PLUS 2.276% of the cost over \$10,000;

10 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than
11 \$1,000,000: \$9,092 PLUS 1.721% of the cost over \$200,000;

12 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less
13 than \$10,000,000: \$23,127 PLUS 1.445% of the cost over \$1,000,000;

14 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more, but less
15 than \$30,000,000: \$155,622 PLUS 0.445% of the cost over \$10,000,000;

16 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$30,000,000 or more, but less
17 than \$50,000,000: \$246,327 PLUS 0.167% of the cost over \$30,000,000;

18 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$50,000,000 or more, but less
19 than \$100,000,000: \$280,403 PLUS 0.041% of the cost over \$50,000,000;

20 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$100,000,000 or more: \$300,903
21 ~~PLUS 0.016% of the cost over \$100,000,000.~~

22 An applicant proposing major revisions to a project application that has been
23 inactive for more than six months and is assigned shall submit a new application. An applicant
24 proposing significant revisions to a project which has not been assigned and for which an
25 application is on file with the Planning Department shall be charged time and materials to

1 cover the full costs in excess of the initial fee paid. A \$120 surcharge shall be added to this
2 fee to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Supervisors.

3 (2) For preparation of an environmental impact report excluding use of
4 special expertise or technical assistance, as described in Administrative Code Section 31.23,
5 the initial fee shall be:

6 Where the total estimated construction cost as defined in the San Francisco
7 Building Code is between \$0 to \$199,999: \$26,729;

8 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than
9 \$1,000,000: \$26,729 PLUS 0.657% of the cost over \$200,000;

10 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less
11 than \$10,000,000: \$32,231 PLUS 0.445% of the cost over \$1,000,000;

12 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more, but less
13 than \$30,000,000: \$73,049 PLUS 0.182% of the cost over \$10,000,000;

14 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$30,000,000 or more, but less
15 than \$50,000,000: \$110,243 PLUS 0.049% of the cost over \$30,000,000;

16 Where said total construction cost is \$50,000,000 or more, but less than
17 \$100,000,000: \$120,381 PLUS 0.049% of the cost over \$50,000,000;

18 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$100,000,000 or more: \$145,939
19 ~~PLUS 0.016% of the cost over \$100,000,000.~~

20 An applicant proposing major revisions to a project application that has been
21 inactive for more than six months and is assigned shall submit a new application. An applicant
22 proposing significant revisions to a project which has not been assigned and for which an
23 application is on file with the Planning Department shall be charged time and materials to
24 cover the full costs in excess of the initial fee paid.
25

1 (3) For an appeal to the Planning Commission: The fee shall be \$562 to the
2 appellant; provided, however, that the fee shall be waived if the appeal is filed by a
3 neighborhood organization that: (A) has been in existence for 24 months prior to the appeal
4 filing date, (B) is on the Planning Department's neighborhood organization notification list, and
5 (C) can demonstrate to the Planning Director or the Director's his/her designee that the
6 organization is affected by the proposed project. An exemption from paying this appeal fee
7 may be granted when the requestor's income is not enough to pay for the fee without affecting
8 ~~his or her~~requestor's ability-abilities to pay for the necessities of life, provided that the person
9 seeking the exemption demonstrates to the Planning Director or the Director's his/her designee
10 that ~~he or she~~the person is substantially affected by the proposed project.

11 (4) For an appeal to the Board of Supervisors of environmental
12 determinations, including the certification of an EIR, a negative declaration, or determination
13 of a categorical exemption, the fee shall be \$562 to the appellant; provided, however, that the
14 fee shall be waived if the appeal is filed by a neighborhood organization that: (A) has been in
15 existence for 24 months prior to the appeal filing date, (B) is on the Planning Department's
16 neighborhood organization notification list, and (C) can demonstrate to the Planning Director
17 or the Director's his/her designee that the organization is affected by the proposed project.
18 Fees shall be used to defray the cost of appeal for the Planning Department. Such fee shall
19 be refunded to the appellant in the event the Planning Department rescinds its determination
20 or the Board of Supervisors remands or rejects the environmental impact report, negative
21 declaration, or determination of a categorical exemption to the Planning Commission for
22 revisions based on issues related to the adequacy and accuracy of the environmental
23 determination. An exemption from paying this appeal fee may be granted when the
24 requestor's income is not enough to pay for the fee without affecting ~~his or her~~the requestor's
25 ability to pay for the necessities of life, provided that the person seeking the exemption

1 demonstrates to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors or the Clerk's his/her designee that ~~he or~~
2 ~~she~~ the person is substantially affected by the proposed project.

3 (5) For preparation of an addendum to an environmental impact report that
4 has previously been certified, pursuant to Section 15164 of the State CEQA Guidelines, or
5 reevaluation of a modified project for which a negative declaration has been prepared:
6 \$25,174 plus time and materials as set forth in Administrative Code Section 31.22(e).

7 (6) For preparation of a supplement to a draft or certified final environmental
8 impact report: One-half of the fee that would be required for a full environmental impact report
9 on the same project, as set forth in ~~Paragraph~~ subsection (a)(2) above, plus time and materials
10 as set forth in ~~§~~ subsection (b)(2). A \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate
11 the City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Supervisors.

12 (7) ~~(A)~~—For preparation of a Certificate of Exemption from Environmental
13 Review determining that a project is categorically exempt, statutorily exempt,
14 ministerial/nonphysical, an emergency, or a planning and feasibility study: \$321 for
15 applications that require only a stamp, \$6,278 as an initial fee for applications that require a
16 Certificate of Exemption ~~Certificate~~, plus time and materials as set forth in ~~§~~ subsection (b)(2). A
17 \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to
18 the Board of Supervisors.

19 ~~(B)~~—~~For preparation of a Class 32 Certificate of Exemption from~~
20 ~~Environmental Review determining that a project is categorically exempt, the initial fee shall be:~~

21 ~~————Where the total estimated construction cost as defined by the San Francisco Building~~
22 ~~Code is between \$0 and \$9,999: \$11,544;~~

23 ~~————Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000 or more, but less than \$200,000:~~
24 ~~\$11,544 PLUS 0.201% of the cost over \$10,000;~~

1 ~~———— Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than~~
2 ~~\$1,000,000: \$11,926 PLUS 0.190% of the cost over \$200,000;~~

3 ~~———— Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less than~~
4 ~~\$10,000,000: \$13,446 PLUS 0.057% of the cost over \$1,000,000;~~

5 ~~———— Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more: \$18,709 PLUS~~
6 ~~0.426% of the cost over \$10,000,000.~~

7 ~~A \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to~~
8 ~~the Board of Supervisors.~~

9 (8) For preparation of an exemption that requires review of historical
10 resource issues only, the following fees apply. For a determination of whether a property is an
11 historical resource under CEQA, the fee is \$2,630. For a determination of whether a project
12 would result in a substantial adverse change in the significance of an historical resource, the
13 fee is \$3,648. A \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate the City for the
14 costs of appeals to the Board of Supervisors.

15 (9) For preparation of a letter of exemption from environmental review: \$321,
16 plus time and materials as set forth in Administrative Code Section 31.22(e).

17 (10) For review of a categorical or statutory exemption prepared by another
18 City Agency, such as the Municipal Transportation Agency or the Public Utilities Commission:
19 \$270, plus time and materials as set forth in Administrative Code Section 31.22(e).

20 (11) For reactivating an application that the Environmental Review Officer has
21 deemed withdrawn due to inactivity and the passage of time, subject to the approval of the
22 Environmental Review Officer and within six months of the date the application was deemed
23 withdrawn: \$237 plus time and materials to cover any additional staff costs.

24 (12) Monitoring Conditions of Approval and Mitigation Monitoring: Upon
25 adoption of conditions of approval and/or mitigation measures which the Environmental

1 Review Officer determines require active monitoring, the fee shall be \$1,271, as an initial fee,
2 plus time and materials as set forth in Administrative Code Section 31.22(e).

3 (b) The Planning Department shall charge the following Community Plan Fees for
4 environmental applications filed in adopted Plan Areas effective after July 1, 2005:

5 (1) For Class 1 and 3 Exemptions: same as basic fees outlined in Section
6 (a)(8) and (10) above.

7 (2) For determination of the appropriate environmental document: \$14,017
8 and any fee pursuant to Administrative Code Section 31.23.1(a)-(c). In addition, the applicant
9 shall pay the following fees as applicable-appropriate:

10 (A) If the determination is that the project qualifies for a Community
11 exemption or exclusion or General Plan exemption, the applicant shall pay a fee of \$7,659. A
12 \$120 surcharge shall be added to this fee to compensate the City for the costs of appeals to
13 the Board of Supervisors.

14 (B) If the determination is that the project does not qualify for a
15 Community exemption or exclusion, the applicant shall pay fees as set forth in ~~§~~subsection (c)
16 below.

17 (c) The fees for projects determined not to qualify for a Community exemption or
18 exclusion are as follows. A \$120 surcharge shall be added to these fees to compensate the
19 City for the costs of appeals to the Board of Supervisors:

20 (1) For an initial study excluding use of special expertise or technical
21 assistance the initial fee shall be:

22 Where the total estimated construction cost as defined by the San Francisco
23 Building Code is between \$0 and \$9,999: \$1,499;

24 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000 or more, but less than
25 \$200,000: \$6,227 PLUS 2.833% of the cost over \$10,000;

1 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than
2 \$1,000,000: \$11,715 PLUS 2.141% of the cost over \$200,000;

3 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less
4 than \$10,000,000: \$29,178 PLUS 1.796% of the cost over \$1,000,000;

5 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more, but less
6 than \$30,000,000: \$194,017 PLUS 0.553% of the cost over \$10,000,000;

7 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$30,000,000 or more, but less
8 than \$50,000,000: \$306,896 PLUS 0.208% of the cost over \$30,000,000;

9 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$50,000,000 or more, but less
10 than \$100,000,000: \$349,413 PLUS 0.049% of the cost over \$50,000,000;

11 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$100,000,000 or more: \$374,723
12 *PLUS 0.019% of the cost over \$100,000,000.*

13 An applicant proposing major revisions to a project application that has been
14 inactive for more than six months and is assigned shall submit a new application. An applicant
15 proposing significant revisions to a project which has not been assigned and for which an
16 application is on file with the Planning Department shall be charged time and materials to
17 cover the full costs in excess of the initial fee paid.

18 (2) For preparation of an environmental impact report excluding use of
19 special expertise or technical assistance, the initial fee shall be:

20 Where the total estimated construction cost as defined in the San Francisco
21 Building Code is between \$0 to \$199,999: \$33,263;

22 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$200,000 or more, but less than
23 \$1,000,000: \$33,263 PLUS 0.818% of the cost over \$200,000;

24 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$1,000,000 or more, but less
25 than \$10,000,000: \$40,113 PLUS 0.553% of the cost over \$1,000,000;

1 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$10,000,000 or more, but less
2 than \$30,000,000: \$90,908 PLUS 0.227% of the cost over \$10,000,000;

3 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$30,000,000 or more, but less
4 than \$50,000,000: \$137,223 PLUS 0.061% of the cost over \$30,000,000;

5 Where said total construction cost is \$50,000,000 or more, but less than
6 \$100,000,000: \$149,941 PLUS 0.061% of the cost over \$50,000,000;

7 Where said total estimated construction cost is \$100,000,000 or more: \$181,737
8 ~~PLUS 0.019% of the cost over \$100,000,000.~~

9 An applicant proposing major revisions to a project application that has been
10 inactive for more than six months and is assigned shall submit a new application. An applicant
11 proposing significant revisions to a project which has not been assigned and for which an
12 application is on file with the Planning Department shall be charged time and materials to
13 cover the full costs in excess of the initial fee paid.

14 (3) For the preparation of a focused Environmental Impact Report: one-half
15 the fee that would be required for a full environmental impact report, as set forth in
16 ~~Paragraph~~ subsection (c)(2) above, plus time and materials.

17 (4) The fees listed listed in subsection (c) above will sunset 20 years after the
18 effective date of Plan Adoption.

19
20 Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after
21 enactment. Enactment occurs when the Mayor signs the ordinance, the Mayor returns the
22 ordinance unsigned or does not sign the ordinance within ten days of receiving it, or the Board
23 of Supervisors overrides the Mayor's veto of the ordinance.

BOARD of SUPERVISORS



City Hall
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244
San Francisco, CA 94102-4689
Tel. No. (415) 554-5184
Fax No. (415) 554-5163
TDD/TTY No. (415) 554-5227

MEMORANDUM

Date: September 15, 2025
To: Planning Department/Planning Commission
From: John Carroll, Assistant Clerk, Land Use and Transportation Committee
Subject: Board of Supervisors Legislation Referral - File No. 250888
Planning Code - Planning Fees

- California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Determination *(California Public Resources Code, Sections 21000 et seq.)*
 - Ordinance / Resolution
 - Ballot Measure

Not defined as a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15378 and 15060(c)(2) because it would not result in a direct or indirect physical change in the environment. *Joy Navarrete*
10/3/2025
- Amendment to the Planning Code, including the following Findings:
(Planning Code, Section 302(b): 90 days for Planning Commission review)
 - General Plan
 - Planning Code, Section 101.1
 - Planning Code, Section 302
- Amendment to the Administrative Code, involving Land Use/Planning
(Board Rule 3.23: 30 days for possible Planning Department review)
- General Plan Referral for Non-Planning Code Amendments
(Charter, Section 4.105, and Administrative Code, Section 2A.53)
(Required for legislation concerning the acquisition, vacation, sale, or change in use of City property; subdivision of land; construction, improvement, extension, widening, narrowing, removal, or relocation of public ways, transportation routes, ground, open space, buildings, or structures; plans for public housing and publicly-assisted private housing; redevelopment plans; development agreements; the annual capital expenditure plan and six-year capital improvement program; and any capital improvement project or long-term financing proposal such as general obligation or revenue bonds.)
- Historic Preservation Commission
 - Landmark *(Planning Code, Section 1004.3)*
 - Cultural Districts *(Charter, Section 4.135 & Board Rule 3.23)*
 - Mills Act Contract *(Government Code, Section 50280)*
 - Designation for Significant/Contributory Buildings *(Planning Code, Article 11)*

Please send the Planning Department/Commission recommendation/determination to John Carroll at john.carroll@sfgov.org.

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO



DANIEL LURIE
MAYOR

TO: Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
FROM: Adam Thongsavat, Liaison to the Board of Supervisors
RE: Planning Code - Planning Fees
DATE: September 2, 2025

Ordinance amending the Planning Code to require certain Planning Department fees to be paid to the Department at the time the Development Application is submitted, modify the environmental review fees for large projects, and remove the separate fee schedule for "Class 32" categorical exemptions under the California Environmental Quality Act; affirming the Planning Department's determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and making findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare pursuant to Planning Code, Section 302.

Should you have any questions, please contact Adam Thongsavat at adam.thongsavat@sfgov.org

BOARD of SUPERVISORS



City Hall
Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244
San Francisco, CA 94102-4689
Tel. No. (415) 554-5184
Fax No. (415) 554-5163
TDD/TTY No. (415) 554-5227

MEMORANDUM

LAND USE AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

SAN FRANCISCO BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

TO: Supervisor Myrna Melgar, Chair
Land Use and Transportation Committee

FROM: John Carroll, Assistant Clerk

DATE: November 4, 2025

SUBJECT **COMMITTEE REPORT, BOARD MEETING**
Tuesday, November 4, 2025

The following file should be presented as COMMITTEE REPORT during the Board meeting on Tuesday, November 4, 2025. This ordinance was acted upon during the Land Use and Transportation Committee meeting on Monday, November 3, 2025, at 1:30 p.m., by the votes indicated.

BOS Item No. 29 **File No. 250888**

[Planning Code - Planning Fees]

Ordinance amending the Planning Code to require certain Planning Department fees to be paid to the Department at the time the Development Application is submitted, modify the environmental review fees for large projects, and remove the separate fee schedule for "Class 32" categorical exemptions under the California Environmental Quality Act; affirming the Planning Department's determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and making findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare pursuant to Planning Code, Section 302.

RECOMMENDED AS A COMMITTEE REPORT

Vote: Supervisor Myrna Melgar – Aye
Supervisor Chyanne Chen – Aye
Supervisor Bilal Mahmood – Aye

Cc: Board of Supervisors
Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the Board
Alisa Somera, Legislative Deputy
Brad Russi, Deputy City Attorney